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“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
INTRODUCTION
Organization and operations
“TBC Kredit Non-Bank Credit Organization” Limited Liability Company (the “Company”) was incorporated
and domiciled in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The Company is a limited liability company and was set up
in accordance with Azerbaijani regulations.
The Company was founded as a non-bank credit organization on December 7, 1999 as Shore Overseas
Azerbaijan and re-registered on April 7, 2006 as “SOA Kredit” Limited Liability Company, then on July 28,
2008 as “TBC Kredit Non-bank Credit Organization” Limited Liability Company with the state registration
number 1400233171 (TIN).
The principal activity of the Company is commercial lending operations within the Republic of Azerbaijan.
The activities of the Company are regulated by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan Republic (“CBAR”) and
business functions are performed under the non-bank credit organization’s license for limited banking
operations issued by the CBAR. The legal address of the Company is: 71/77 28 May Street, Baku,
Azerbaijan.
As at December 31, 2019 the Company had 10 branches (2018: 8 branches). The parent of the Company
is Georgia based JSC “TBC Bank” who owns 100% of the Company’s charter capital.
The Company is ultimately controlled by JSC “TBC Bank”.
Business environment
The Company’s operations are conducted in the Republic of Azerbaijan. Azerbaijan continues economic
reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability of the
Azerbaijan’s economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and the effectiveness
of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government as well as crude oil prices
and stability of Azerbaijani Manat.
The Azerbaijan’s economy has been negatively impacted by decline of oil prices and devaluation of
Azerbaijani Manat during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital, inflation
and uncertainty regarding economic growth. In response to these challenges, Azerbaijani government
announced plans to accelerate reforms and support financial system. On December 6, 2016 President of
the Republic of Azerbaijan approved “Strategic road maps for the national economy and main economic
sectors of Azerbaijan”. The road maps cover 2016-2020 development strategy, long-term outlook up to
2025 and vision beyond.
Furthermore, during 2018 the government continued its monetary policy with respect to stability of
Azerbaijani Manat as well as allocated foreign currency resources which stabilized Azerbaijani Manat.
This policy continued in 2019 with the aim of maintaining macroeconomic stability.
On February 28, 2019, the President of the Republic of Azerbaijan signed a decree “On the additional
measures related to the solution of problematic loans of individuals in the Republic of Azerbaijan” (the
“Decree”). According to the Decree the increase in loan balances denominated in foreign currency resulted
from devaluations of the national currency on February 21, 2015 and December 21, 2015 with total
exposure up to USD 10 thousand in all banks had to be compensated by the government and CBAR had
to provide loans to the banks with 0.1% interest rate and for 5 years under the state guarantee in order to
restructure loans to individuals with overdue days more than 360 as at the date of the Decree and issued
starting January 1, 2012 till the date of the Decree with exposure of up to USD 10 thousand or AZN 17
thousand.
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The Company’s management is monitoring changes in macroeconomic environment and taking
precautionary measures it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability and development of
the Company’s business in the foreseeable future.
International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate credit rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan. Fitch and
S&P evaluated rating of the Republic of Azerbaijan as “BB+”. Moody’s Investors Service set “Ba2” credit
rating for the country.
The future economic growth of the Republic of Azerbaijan is largely dependent upon the effectiveness of
economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together with tax, legal,
regulatory and political developments. The Management is unable to predict, all developments in the
economic environment which would have an impact on the Company’s operations and consequently what
effect, if any, they could have on the financial position of the Company. The management is currently
performing sensitivity analyses under different scenarios and elaborating relevant action plans for
mainlining sustainability of the business.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these financial statements are set out below. Apart from the accounting policy changes
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 16 effective from January 1, 2019, these policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
This is the first set of the Company’s annual financial statements in which IFRS 16 “Leases” has been
applied. Changes to significant accounting policies are described in further paragraphs of Note 5.
The functional and the presentation currency of the Company is Azerbaijani Manat (“AZN”) as, being the
national currency of the Republic of Azerbaijan, it reflects the economic substance of the majority of
underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Company.
AZN is also the presentation currency for the purposes of these financial statements. Financial information
presented in AZN is rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.
Going concern
These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Company is a going concern
and will continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Interest
Effective interest rate
Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to:



the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or
the amortized cost of the financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired assets, the Company estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument, but not expected credit losses. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including
expected credit losses.
The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability.
Amortized cost and gross carrying amount
The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance.
The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ measured at amortized cost is the amortized cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.
Calculation of interest income and expense
The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a
financial asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the
amortized cost of the liability.
However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If
the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the asset. The calculation of
interest income does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see further Note 3.
Presentation
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income includes interest on financial assets measured at amortized cost;
Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income includes
interest on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost;
11

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
Other interest income presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
includes interest income on net investments in finance leases.
Foreign currency transactions
Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the Company’s functional currency at the official
exchange rate of the CBAR at the end of the respective reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities into the Company’s functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBAR, are
recognized in profit or loss for the year (as foreign exchange translation gains less losses). Translation at
year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Effects of exchange rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss.
The exchange rates used by the Company in the preparation of the financial statements as at year-end
are as follows:
December 31,
2019
AZN/US Dollar 1
AZN/Euro 1

1.7000
1.9035

December 31,
2018
1.7000
1.9468

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with banks and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of less than three months, which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Company in the management of shortterm commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial
position.
Financial assets and financial liabilities
Classification
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:



the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:



the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

12

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
For debt financial assets measured at FVOCI, gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income, except for the following, which are recognized in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortized cost:




interest income using the effective interest method;
ECL and reversals; and
foreign exchange gains and losses.

Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:







the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:






contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
leverage features;
prepayment and extension terms;
terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse asset
arrangements); and
features that modify consideration of the time value of money – e.g. periodical reset of interest rates.

Reclassification
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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The Company should reclassify financial assets if the Company changes its business model for managing
those financial assets. Such changes are expected to be very infrequent. Such changes are determined
by the Company’s senior management as a result of external or internal changes and must be significant
to the Company’s operations and demonstrable to external parties. Accordingly, a change in the
Company’s business model will occur only when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an
activity that is significant to its operations; for example, when the Company has acquired, disposed of or
terminated a business line.
Financial liabilities
The Company classified its financial liabilities as measured at amortized cost.
Financial liabilities are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.
Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different (referred to as
‘substantial modification’), then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are
deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial
asset is recognized at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the
modification are accounted for as follows:



fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and
other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

Changes in cash flows on existing financial assets or financial liabilities are not considered as modification,
if they result from existing contractual terms, e.g. changes in interest rates initiated by the Company due
to changes in the CBAR key rate, if the loan agreement entitles the Company to do so.
The Company performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial,
i.e. whether the cash flows of the original financial asset and the modified or replaced financial asset are
substantially different. The Company assesses whether the modification is substantial based on
quantitative and qualitative factors in the following order: qualitative factors, quantitative factors, combined
effect of qualitative and quantitative factors. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the
contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset deemed to have expired. In making this
evaluation the Company analogizes to the guidance on the derecognition of financial liabilities.
The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative factors:



change the currency of the financial asset;
change of terms of financial asset that lead to non-compliance with the SPPI criterion (e.g. inclusion
of conversion feature).

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the modification
is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate a new asset with
substantially different terms. If the Company plans to modify a financial asset in a way that would result in
forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset should be written off before
the modification takes place (see below for write-off policy). This approach impacts the result of the
quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases. The
Company further performs qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial.
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If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortized cost does not result in derecognition of the
financial asset, then the Company first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset using
the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustment as a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial assets, the original effective interest rate used to
calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the
modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees received as part of the modification adjust the gross
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the modified
financial asset.
If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss
is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income calculated
using the effective interest method.
For fixed-rate loans, where the borrower has an option to prepay the loan at par without significant penalty,
the Company treats the modification of an interest rate to a current market rate using the guidance on
floating-rate financial instruments. This means that the effective interest rate is adjusted prospectively.
Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in profit or loss. Consideration
paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the new
modified financial liability.
Company performs a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of whether the modification is substantial
considering qualitative factors, quantitative factors and combined effect of qualitative and quantitative
factors. The Company concludes that the modification is substantial as a result of the following qualitative
factors:




change the currency of the financial liability;
inclusion of conversion option;
change in the subordination of the financial liability.

For the quantitative assessment the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortized cost of
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and
the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect current market
terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognized as an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the liability and amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by
re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument.
Expected credit losses
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments that are not measured at FVTPL: financial assets that are debt instruments; lease receivables.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for
which they are measured as 12-month ECL:
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debt instruments that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date;
other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their initial
recognition (see Note 25).

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a 12-month ECL is
recognized are referred to as ‘Stage 1’ financial instruments.
Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument. Financial instruments for which a lifetime ECL is recognized are referred to as ‘Stage 2’ financial
instruments if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, but the financial
instruments are not credit-impaired and ‘Stage 3’ financial instruments (if the financial instruments are
credit-impaired).
Measurement of ECL
ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:



financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive);
financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

Credit-impaired financial assets
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:





the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Company.
restrictions on the use of account balances or late payments on Company’s bank deposits last more
than 7 days.
significant financial difficulty of the borrower.
the restructuring of a loan on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered
to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is
overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-impaired.
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost are presented in the statement
of financial position as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.
Write-offs
Loans are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.
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Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘expected credit losses’ in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with
the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
Income and expense recognition
Fee and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset
or financial liability are included in the effective interest rate.
Other fee and commission expenses relate mainly to transaction and service fees, which are expensed
as the services are received.
Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expenses,
over the term of the lease.
Loans to customers
‘Loans to customers’ caption in the year end statement of financial position includes loans to customers
measured at amortized cost; they are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently at their amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Finance lease receivables
Where the Company is a lessor in a lease that substantially transfers all risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the lessee, the assets leased out are presented as investments in finance leases and carried
at the present value of the future lease payments. Investments in finance leases are initially recognized
at commencement (when the lease term begins) using a discount rate determined at inception (the early
date of the lease agreement and the date of commitment by the parties to the principal provisions of the
lease).
The difference between the gross receivable and the present value represents unearned finance income.
This income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Incremental costs is directly attributable to negotiating and
arranging the lease are included in the initial measurement of the finance lease receivable and reduce the
amount of income recognized over the lease term. Finance income from leases is recorded within interest
income in the profit or loss.
Property and equipment
Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of property
and equipment. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount, which is
determined as the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount of property and equipment is greater than their estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
to their recoverable amount and the difference is charged as an impairment loss to the statement of profit
or loss.
Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying
amount and recorded as gain/(loss) in the statement of profit or loss.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss when the expense is incurred.
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Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
individual assets. Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:
-

Office and computer equipment
Furniture and fixture
Vehicles
Leasehold improvement
Right of use assets

5 years
10 years
4-5 years
shorter of useful life and the term of the underlying lease
over the term of the underlying lease

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
Intangible assets
Acquired intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software.
Amortization is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets. The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are 5-10 years.
Non financial assets
Other non financial assets, other than deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications of impairment. The recoverable amount of non financial assets is the greater of their fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount
of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
All impairment losses in respect of non financial assets are recognized in profit or loss and reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Any impairment
loss reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.
Provisions
A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Charter capital
Charter capital is the amount of capital contributed by all participants. The total numbers of shares are
proportionate division between participants in charter capital of the Company. The Company may increase
or decrease its charter capital with approval of the General Meeting of Participants.
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Dividends
The ability of the Company to declare and pay dividends is subject to the rules and regulations of
Azerbaijan legislation.
Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in the period
when they are declared.
Taxation
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items of other comprehensive income or transactions with shareholders recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized within other comprehensive income or directly within equity.
Current tax
Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which
the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Assets held for sale
Assets held for sale represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Company in settlement
of overdue loans. The assets are initially recognized at fair value when acquired and included in premises
and equipment, other financial assets, investment properties or inventories within other assets depending
on their nature and Company’s intention in respect of recovery of these assets and are subsequently
remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.
Debt securities in issue
Debt securities in issue include Eurobonds (securities denominated in US dollars) issued by the Company.
Debt securities are stated at amortized cost. If the Company purchases its own debt securities in issue,
they are removed from the statement of financial position and the difference between the carrying amount
of the liability and the consideration paid is included in gains arising from early retirement of debt.
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Term borrowings
Term borrowings include loans from non-resident banks and other financial institutions with fixed
maturities and fixed or floating interest rates. Term borrowings are carried at amortized cost.
Due to banks
Amounts due to banks are recorded when money or other assets are advanced to the Company by
resident counterparty financial institutions. The non-derivative liability is carried at amortized cost. If the
Company purchases its own debt, the liability is removed from the statement of financial position and the
difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included in gains or
losses arising from early retirement of debt.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognized in the financial
statements, and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:
Measurement of ECL allowance. Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves
determination of methodology, models and data inputs. Details of ECL measurement methodology are
disclosed in Note 25. The following components have a major impact on credit loss allowance: definition
of default, SICR, probability of default (“PD”), exposure at default (“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”),
as well as models of macro-economic scenarios. The Company regularly reviews and validates the
models and inputs to the models to reduce any differences between expected credit loss estimates and
actual credit loss experience. For details of ECL measurement including incorporation of forward-looking
information refer to Note 25.
Modification of financial assets. When financial assets are contractually modified (e.g. renegotiated),
the Company assesses whether the modification is substantial and should result in derecognition of the
original asset and recognition of a new asset at fair value. This assessment is based primarily on
qualitative factors, described in the relevant accounting policy and it requires significant judgment. In
particular, the Company applies judgment in deciding whether credit impaired renegotiated loans should
be derecognized and whether the new recognized loans should be considered as credit impaired on initial
recognition. The derecognition assessment depends on whether the risks and rewards, that is, the
variability of expected (rather than contractual) cash flows, change as a result of such modifications.
Management determined that risks and rewards did not change as a result of modifying such loans and
therefore in substantially all such modifications, the loans were neither derecognized nor reclassified out
of the credit-impaired stage.
Useful life of premises and equipment. The Company assesses the remaining useful lives of items of
property and equipment at least at each financial year-end. If expectations differ from previous estimates,
the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. These estimates may have a material
impact on the amount of the carrying values of property and equipment and on depreciation recognized
in profit or loss.
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Valuation of lease liabilities and right of use assets. The application of IFRS 16 requires to make
judgements of right of use assets and lease liabilities. In determining the lease term, the Company
considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise renewal options (or
not to exercise termination options). Assessing whether a contract includes a lease also requires
judgement. Estimates are required to determine the appropriate discount rate used to measure lease
liabilities.
Deferred income tax asset recognition. The carrying value of deferred income tax assets amounted to
AZN 139 thousand and AZN 112 thousand as at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Management
is confident that the carrying amount of deferred income tax asset will be fully realized in the future.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
In the current year, the Company has adopted all of the applicable new and revised Standards and
Interpretations issued by the IASB and the IFRIC of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and
effective for annual reporting periods ending in December 31, 2019.
IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under IAS 12. It specifically considers:

• whether tax treatments should be considered collectively;
• assumptions for taxation authorities’ examinations;
• the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and

• the effect of changes in facts and circumstances.
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle contains amendments to four International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as result of the IASB’s annual improvements project.
Standard

Subject of amendment

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” and The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a
IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”
business that is a joint operation, it remeasures previously held interests in
that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an entity
obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does
not remeasure previously held interests in that business.
IAS 12 “Income Taxes”

The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (i.e.
distribution of profits) should be recognized in profit or loss, regardless of
how the tax arises.

IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing
becomes part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating
the capitalization rate on general borrowings.

Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” – The
amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is calculated by
measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and comparing benefits offered
and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the effect
of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). IAS 19 is now
clear that the change in the effect of the asset ceiling that may result from the plan amendment (or
curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second step and is recognized in the normal manner in other
comprehensive income.
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The paragraphs that relate to measuring the current service cost and the net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) have also been amended. An entity will now be required to use the updated
assumptions from this remeasurement to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder
of the reporting period after the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, the amendments make
it clear that for the period post plan amendment, the net interest is calculated by multiplying the net defined
benefit liability (asset) as remeasured under IAS 19.99 with the discount rate used in the remeasurement
(also taking into account the effect of contributions and benefit payments on the net defined benefit liability
(asset)).
The amendments are applied prospectively. They apply only to plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements that occur on or after the beginning of the annual period in which the amendments to
IAS 19 are first applied.
Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associations and Joint Ventures” – The IASB has published
amendments to IAS 28 regarding the long-term interest in associates and joint Ventures. According to the
amendment the entity should apply IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture that form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which the equity method is not applied.
Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” – The IASB has published amendments to IFRS 9
regarding prepayment features with negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities.
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation amends the existing requirement of IFRS 9 regarding
termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortized cost even in the case of negative
compensation payments. The IASB also clarifies that the entity recognizes any adjustment to the
amortized cost of the financial liability arising from a modification or exchange in profit or loss at the date
of modification or exchange.
IFRS 16 “Leases”, which specifies how and IFRS reporter recognizes, measures, presents and discloses
leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets
and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low
value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16’s approach to lessor
accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, IAS 17.
IFRS 16 was issued on January 13, 2016 and applied to an annual reporting period beginning on or after
January 1, 2019.
The Company has elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset
for operating leases in existence at the date of initial application of IFRS 16, being January 1, 2019. At
this date, the Company has also elected to measure the right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the
lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition.
In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements
in IAS 17. The Company was effected by application of new standard as a Lessee.
IFRS 16 changes how the Company accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under
IAS 17, which were off‑balance sheet. On initial application of IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted
below), the Company:
a) Recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position, initially
measured at the present value of the future lease payments;
b) Recognizes depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the statement of profit
or loss;
c) Separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities)
and interest (presented within operating activities) in the cash flow statement.
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Lease incentives (e.g. rent-free period) are recognized as part of the measurement of the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease liability
incentive, amortized as a reduction of rental expenses on a straight-line basis.
Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets. This replaces the previous requirement to recognize a provision for onerous lease contracts.
For short-term leases (lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal
computers and office furniture), the Company opts to recognize a lease expense on a straight-line basis
as permitted by IFRS 16.
The Company has evaluated the effects of application of this standard and made changes on its financial
statements.
The following is a reconciliation of total operating lease commitments at December 31, 2018 to the lease
liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019:
January 1,
2019
Total operating lease commitments at December 31, 2018

194

Discounted using incremental borrowing rate

(36)

Total lease liabilities recognized under IFRS 16 at January 1, 2019

158

The effect of adoption IFRS 16 on the financial statements as at January 1, 2019 was as follows:

Property and equipment
Lease liability

Carrying
value as at
December 31,
2018

Remeasurement

Carrying
value per
IFRS 16 as at
January 1,
2019

185
-

158
(158)

343
(158)

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET ADOPTED
At the date of authorization of these financial statements, other than the Standards and Interpretations
adopted by the Company in advance of their effective dates, the following Interpretations were in issue but
not yet effective.
IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Amendment of the definition of “Business” – The amendments will
help companies determine whether an acquisition made is of a business or a group of assets.
The amended definition emphasizes that the output of a business is to provide goods and services to
customers, whereas the previous definition focused on returns in the form of dividends, lower costs or other
economic benefits to investors and others. Distinguishing between a business and a group of assets is
important because an acquirer recognizes goodwill only when acquiring a business. According to the
amendment new definition a “business” is an integrated set of activities and assets that is capable of being
conducted and managed for the purpose of providing goods or services to customers, generating investment
income (such as dividends or interest) or generating other income from ordinary activities.
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The Company is required to apply the amended definition of a business to acquisitions that occur on or after
January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.
New definition of “Material” – The IASB has issued amendments to its definition of material to make it
easier for companies to make materiality judgements. The updated definition amends
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.
The amendments clarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by including in the definition
guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS Standards. According to the new definition,
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.
The changes are effective from January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.
IASB has published “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and
IFRS 7)” as a first reaction to the potential effects the IBOR reform could have on financial reporting. The
changes in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform will:

• modify specific hedge accounting requirements so that entities would apply those hedge accounting

•
•
•

requirements assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash
flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform;
are mandatory for all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark
reform;
are not intended to provide relief from any other consequences arising from interest rate benchmark
reform (if a hedging relationship no longer meets the requirements for hedge accounting for reasons
other than those specified by the amendments, discontinuation of hedge accounting is required); and
require specific disclosures about the extent to which the entities’ hedging relationships are affected
by the amendments.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and must be applied
retrospectively. Early application is permitted.
IFRS 17 “Insurance contracts” was issued in May 2017 and replaced IFRS 4 “Insurance contracts”. The
new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. An entity shall apply IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” to
insurance contracts, including reinsurance contracts, it issues; reinsurance contracts it holds; and investment
contracts with discretionary participation features it issues, provided the entity also issues insurance
contracts.
IFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. Earlier application is
permitted if both IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments have
also been applied.
Amendments to IAS 1 to clarify the classification of liabilities – In January 2020 the IASB has issued
“Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current (Amendments to IAS 1)” providing a more
general approach to the classification of liabilities under IAS 1 based on the contractual arrangements in
place at the reporting date. The amendments in Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
(Amendments to IAS 1) affect only the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position — not
the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability income or expenses, or the information that entities
disclose about those items.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022 and are
to be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
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IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture – The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS
28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of
a subsidiary that does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, are recognized in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the
re-measurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are recognized in the former parent’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.
The effective date of the amendments has yet to be set by the IASB; however, earlier application of the
amendments is permitted.
The Management is considering the implications of these standards, their impact on the financial statements
and the timing of its adoption by the Company.

PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENTS
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Management detected certain errors in the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 and statement of financial position as at January 1,
2018. These errors were corrected retrospectively, as disclosed below.
The effect of restatements on the statement of financial position as at January 1, 2018 is presented in the
tables below:
Notes

Statement of financial position:
Deferred income tax asset
Accumulated deficit

a

As previously
reported
December 31,
2017

Effect of
restatements

565
(2,478)

(494)
(494)

As restated
January 1,
2018

71
(2,972)

The effect of restatements on the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2018 is presented in the tables below:
Notes

Statement of financial position:
Current tax asset
Accumulated deficit

b

Notes

Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income:
Taxes other than income tax

b

As previously
reported
December 31,
2018

Effect of
restatements

213
(1,089)
As previously
reported
December 31,
2018

(54)
(54)
Effect of
restatements

-

54

As restated
December 31,
2018

159
(1,143)
As restated
December 31,
2018

54
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a) Correction of error in deferred income tax asset balance.
b) Additional tax expense recognized in the amount of AZN 54 thousand.

NET INTEREST INCOME
Year ended
December 31,
2019
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method
Loans and advances to customers
Interest income on finance leases
Current accounts and overnight placements with banks
Total interest income calculated using the effective interest
method
Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method
Due to banks
Lease liability
Debt securities in issue
Term borrowings
Total interest expense calculated using the effective interest
method
Net interest income

Year ended
December 31,
2018

2,823
260
5

3,735
40
18

3,088

3,793

(371)
(107)
(95)
(51)

(438)
(519)
(706)

(624)
2,464

(1,663)
2,130

FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE
Year ended
December 31,
2019
Settlement transactions
Brokerage services
Others
Total fee and commission expenses

(22)
(3)
(12)
(37)

Year ended
December 31,
2018
(119)
(21)
(16)
(156)

PERSONNEL EXPENSES
Year ended
December 31,
2019
Employee compensation
Contributions to State Social Security Fund
Total personnel expenses

(1,475)
(189)
(1,664)

Year ended
December 31,
2018
(1,914)
(279)
(2,193)
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GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Year ended
December 31,
2019
Depreciation and amortization
Professional services fees
Rent expenses
Communication expenses
Software maintenance costs
Advertising and marketing expenses
Payments to the regulator
Utilities
Office supplies
Taxes other than income tax
Others
Total general and administrative expenses

(297)
(156)
(146)
(113)
(73)
(53)
(50)
(29)
(24)
(8)
(98)
(1,047)

Year ended
December 31,
2018
(Restated)
(86)
(118)
(207)
(84)
(82)
(84)
(60)
(34)
(25)
(54)
(131)
(965)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Year ended
December 31,
2019

Current year tax expense
Movement in deferred tax assets due to origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Total income tax expense

Year ended
December 31,
2018
(Restated)

(75)

(123)

27
(48)

41
(82)

In 2019, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 20% (2018: 20%).
Reconciliation of effective tax rate for the year ended December 31:
Year ended
December 31,
2019

Year ended
December 31,
2018

Profit before tax

296

Income tax at the applicable tax rate (20%)

(59)

(382)

Tax effect of permanent differences

11

300

Income tax expense

(48)

(82)

1,911
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Differences between IFRS and the Azerbaijani statutory taxation rules give rise to certain temporary
differences between the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities for purposes of financial
reporting and income tax calculation. The tax effect of the movements in these temporary differences
is recorded at the rate of 20%.
Movements in temporary and deductible differences during the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018 are presented as follows:
January 1,
2019

Recognized
in profit
or loss

25
68
13
6
112

Loans to customers
Finance lease
Assets held for sale
Lease liability
Other liabilities
Other assets
Property, equipment and intangible assets

January 1,
2018
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Assets held for sale
Other liabilities
Other assets
Net deferred income tax asset

December 31,
2019

(15)
1
12
271
12
7
(261)
27

Recognized
in profit
or loss
(23)
(4)
68
31
(1)
71

10
1
80
271
25
13
(261)
139

December 31,
2018
(Restated)
48
4
(18)
7
41

25
68
13
6
112

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
December 31,
2019
Cash on hand
Correspondent accounts with other banks
- rated from BB- to BB+
- rated below B+
- not rated
Total correspondent accounts with other banks
Total cash and cash equivalents

December 31,
2018
3

1

44
413
457
460

22
82
87
191
192

Ratings are based on Fitch Rating system. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, all balances included
in cash and cash equivalents are classified as Stage 1 and no loss allowance is recognized.
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LOANS TO CUSTOMERS
% of total
gross loans

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

% of total
gross loans

Business loans
Consumer loans
Total loans to customers

8,724
10,831
19,555

45%
55%

9,692
14,514
24,206

40%
60%

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Net loans to customers

(7,058)
12,497

36%

(7,119)
17,087

29%

The following table shows loan balances per each industry group of the customers as at December 31,
2019 and 2018:
December 31,
2019
Trade and services
Consumer
Mortgage
Agriculture
Other
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Net loans to customers

7,517
7,359
3,472
142
1,065
19,555

% of total
gross loans

December 31,
2018

38%
38%
18%
1%
5%

% of total
gross loans

7,529
10,261
4,253
328
1,835
24,206

(7,058)

(7,119)

12,497

17,087

31%
42%
18%
1%
8%

Loss allowance
The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balances of the loss
allowance of loans to customers.
2019
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

78
(2)
(61)
(4)
64
75

Stage 2

Stage 3

108
9
(177)
92
2
34

6,933
(7)
238
(824)
(22)
377
254
6,949

Total
7,119
(736)
66
(22)
377
254
7,058
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2018
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Financial assets that have been derecognized
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

166
7
(44)
(1)
(160)
126
(16)
78

Stage 2

Stage 3

103

7,991

(1)
153
(38)
(109)
108

(6)
(109)
39
(3,301)
(201)
1,315
1,205
6,933

Total
8,260
(3,570)
126
(16)
(201)
1,315
1,205
7,119

2019
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost-business loans
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

24
(41)
18
9
10

Stage 2

Stage 3

27
(1)
(20)
1
7

4,728
42
(726)
277
161
4,482

Total
4,779
(728)
10
277
161
4,499

2018
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost-business loans
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

18
1
(17)
22
24

Stage 2

Stage 3

74
(1)
12
(35)
(23)
27

5,231
(12)
35
(2,440)
(160)
1,210
864
4,728

Total
5,323
(2,480)
22
(160)
1,210
864
4,779
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2019
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost-consumer loans
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

54
(2)
(20)
(22)
55
65

Stage 2

Stage 3

81
9
(176)
112
1
27

2,205
(7)
196
(98)
(22)
100
93
2,467

Total
2,340
(8)
56
(22)
100
93
2,559

2018
Stage 1
Loans to customers at amortized cost-consumer loans
Balance at 1 January
Transfer to Stage 1
Transfer to Stage 2
Transfer to Stage 3
Net remeasurement of loss allowance
New financial assets originated or purchased
Financial assets that have been derecognized
Write-offs
Recoveries of amounts previously written off
Unwinding of discount on present value of ECLs
Balance at 31 December

99
6
(44)
(1)
(94)
104
(16)
54

Stage 2

Stage 3

29
141
(3)
(86)
81

2,760
(6)
(97)
4
(861)
(41)
105
341
2,205

Total
2,888
(1,041)
104
(16)
(41)
105
341
2,340

Loans that are written off during 2019 and 2018 could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 included in accrued interest receivable on loans to customers
amounted to AZN 1,738 thousand and AZN 1,635 thousand, respectively.
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Credit quality of loans to customers
The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as at December 31,
2019 and 2018.
December 31, 2019

Loans to customers at amortized cost
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

8,264
166
8,430
(75)
8,355

979
195
20
1,194
(34)
1,160

813
95
58
152
320
8,493
9,931
(6,949)
2,982

Total
10,056
456
78
152
320
8,493
19,555
(7,058)
12,497

December 31, 2018

Loans to customers at amortized cost
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

10,785
105
10,890
(78)
10,812

2,345
167
93
2,605
(108)
2,497

117
5
33
482
1,238
8,836
10,711
(6,933)
3,778

Total
13,247
277
126
482
1,238
8,836
24,206
(7,119)
17,087

December 31, 2019

Loans to customers at amortized cost – business loans
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

1,598
61
1,659
(10)
1,649

369
31
8
408
(7)
401

373
24
58
38
85
6,079
6,657
(4,482)
2,175

Total
2,340
116
66
38
85
6,079
8,724
(4,499)
4,225
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December 31, 2018
Loans to customers at amortized cost – business loans
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

1,371
9
1,380
(24)
1,356

817
103
29
949
(27)
922

37
3
220
975
6,128
7,363
(4,728)
2,635

Total
2,225
112
32
220
975
6,128
9,692
(4,779)
4,913

December 31, 2019

Loans to customers at amortized cost – consumer loans
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

6,667
104
6,771
(65)
6,706

611
164
11
786
(27)
759

441
70
114
234
2,415
3,274
(2,467)
807

Total
7,719
338
11
114
234
2,415
10,831
(2,559)
8,272

December 31, 2018

Loans to customers at amortized cost – consumer loans
Not overdue
Overdue less than 30 days
Overdue 30-89 days
Overdue 90-179 days
Overdue 180-360 days
Overdue more than 360 days
Total loans to customers
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Carrying amount

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

9,414
96
9,510
(54)
9,456

1,528
64
64
1,656
(81)
1,575

79
5
30
262
262
2,710
3,348
(2,205)
1,143

Total
11,021
165
94
262
262
2,710
14,514
(2,340)
12,174
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Collateral held and other credit enhancements
The following table sets out information on loans to customers that are credit-impaired and related
collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses as at December 31, 2019. The fair value of
collaterals are updated as at the reporting date.
For each loan, the fair value of disclosed collateral is capped to the carrying amount of the loan it is
held against.
Fair value of collateral held
Gross
carrying
amount
Loans to individuals
Business loans
Consumer loans
Total credit-impaired
loans to customers

Loss
allowance

Carrying
amount

Motor
vehicles

Real
estate

Total

6,657
3,274

(4,482)
(2,467)

2,175
807

13

3,162
876

3,162
889

9,931

(6,949)

2,982

13

4,038

4,051

Credit-impaired loans to customers in the total carrying amount of AZN 2,982 thousand were overcollateralized by AZN 1,069 thousand.
The following table provides information on collateral securing loans to customers, net of impairment,
by types of collateral as at December 31, 2019:
Fair value of collateral held
Gross
carrying
amount
Loans to individuals
Business loans
Consumer loans
Total loans to
customers

Loss
allowance

Carrying
amount

Motor
vehicles

Real
estate

Total

8,724
10,831

(4,499)
(2,559)

4,225
8,272

7
13

4,030
2,754

4,037
2,767

19,555

(7,058)

12,497

20

6,784

6,804

Total loans to customers in the total carrying amount of AZN 12,497 thousand were undercollateralized by AZN 5,693 thousand.
The following table sets out information on loans to customers that are credit-impaired and related
collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses as at December 31, 2018. The fair value of
collaterals are updated as at the reporting date.

Fair value of collateral held
Gross
carrying
amount
Loans to individuals
Business loans
Consumer loans
Total credit-impaired
loans to customers

Loss
allowance

Carrying
amount

Motor
vehicles

Real
estate

Total

7,363
3,348

(4,728)
(2,205)

2,635
1,143

3
9

2,222
640

2,225
649

10,711

(6,933)

3,778

12

2,862

2,874

Credit-impaired loans to customers in the total carrying amount of AZN 3,778 thousand were undercollateralized by AZN 904 thousand.
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The following table provides information on total amount of loans to customers, net of impairment, by
types of collateral as at December 31, 2018:
Fair value of collateral held
Gross
carrying
amount
Loans to individuals
Business loans
Consumer loans
Total loans to
customers

Loss
allowance

Carrying
amount

Motor
vehicles

Real
estate

Total

9,692
14,514

(4,779)
(2,340)

4,913
12,174

18
46

3,836
3,344

3,854
3,390

24,206

(7,119)

17,087

64

7,180

7,244

Total loans to customers in the total carrying amount of AZN 17,087 thousand were undercollateralized by AZN 9,843 thousand.
Significant credit exposures
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company has no borrowers or companies of connected
borrowers, whose loan balances exceed 10% of equity.
Loan maturities
The maturity of the loan portfolio is presented in Note 25, which shows the remaining period from the
reporting date to the contractual maturity of the loans.
FINANCE LEASES
The following table provides an analysis of finance lease receivables for leases of vehicle and
equipment in which the Company is the lessor.

Gross investment in finance lease, receivable
Less than one year
Between one and five years
Unearned finance income
Net investment in finance lease
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Net investment in finance lease, receivable
Less than one year
Between one and five years

December 31,
2019
495
407
902
(216)
686
(26)
660

388
298
686

December 31,
2018
511
748
1,259
(380)
879
(29)
850

301
578
879

The Company treats finance lease as a business loan in ECL measurement. As at December 31,
2019 and 2018 total of AZN 26 thousand and AZN 29 thousand loss allowance is recognized,
respectively.
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 included in accrued interest receivable on finance leases
amounted to AZN 7 thousand and AZN 10 thousand, respectively.
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PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Right-ofuse assets
(buildings)
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2018
Adjustment on application of
IFRS 16
Balance at January 1, 2019
Additions
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2019
Depreciation and amortisation
Balance at January 1, 2019
Depreciation and amortisation
for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Balance at December 31, 2019
Carrying amount
At December 31, 2019

Leasehold
improvement

Office and
computer
equipment

Furniture

Vehicles

Computer
software
and
licenses

Total

-

446

345

127

47

212

1,177

158

-

-

-

-

-

158

158
1,343
1,501

446
170
616

345
121
(10)
456

127
25
(7)
145

47
(7)
40

212
1
213

1,335
1,660
(24)
2,971

(446)

(280)

(94)

(30)

(142)

(992)

(15)
(461)

(40)
7
(313)

(11)
4
(101)

(4)
2
(32)

(31)
(173)

(297)
13
(1,276)

155

143

44

8

40

1,695

(196)
(196)

1,305

As at December 31, 2019 included in the closing balance of premises and equipment were fully
depreciated assets still in use with the total initial cost of AZN 726 thousand (December 31, 2018:
AZN 675 thousand).
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, no property and equipment were pledged as collateral for
borrowings.
Leasehold
improvement

Cost
Balance at January 1, 2018
Additions
Disposals
Balance at December 31, 2018
Depreciation and amortisation
Balance at January 1, 2018
Depreciation and amortisation for
the year
Eliminated on disposals
Balance at December 31, 2018
Carrying amount
At December 31, 2018

Office and
computer
equipment

Furniture

Vehicles

Computer
software
and
licenses

Total

446
446

333
14
(2)
345

128
(1)
127

58
(11)
47

200
17
(5)
212

1,165
31
(19)
1,177

(446)

(240)

(84)

(36)

(117)

(923)

(446)

(41)
1
(280)

(11)
1
(94)

(5)
11
(30)

(29)
4
(142)

(86)
17
(992)

33

17

-

65

70

185
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ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company received non-financial
assets held for sale at fair value by taking possession of collateral held as security against loans
to customers. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 such assets amounted to AZN 303 thousand
and AZN 328 thousand, respectively, net of change in fair value less costs to sell. Initially, it was
intended that these assets would be recovered principally through a sale transaction within one
year from the date of classification. However, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, the market conditions that existed at the date the assets were classified initially as held
for sale significantly deteriorated and as a result, the assets could not be sold within one year
period. The Company continues to actively market the assets held for sale at a price that is
reasonable given the change in market conditions. As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 all of
the assets held for sale were real estate properties.
December 31,
2019
Repossessed collaterals
Cumulative change in fair value less costs to sell
Balance at the end of the year

December 31,
2018

702
(399)
303

666
(338)
328

The Company recognized fair value loss on assets held for sale in the amount of AZN 61
thousand during the year ended December 31, 2019 (2018: AZN 338 thousand).

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Receivables from intermediaries
Restricted cash
- rated below B+
- not rated
Total restricted cash
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Total other financial assets

December 31,
2019
202

December 31,
2018
190

-

1,050
2,780
3,830

(54)
148

4,020

Restricted cash represents balance on correspondent account placed by the Company in
“Pasha Bank” OJSC and “Yelo Bank” OJSC (former “Nikoil ICB” OJSC) in exchange for the loan
obtained from “Pasha Bank” OJSC and “Yelo Bank” OJSC (former “Nikoil ICB” OJSC) as at
December 31, 2018. The Company does not have the right to use these funds for the purposes
of funding its own activities until the maturity date of borrowings.
An analysis of changes in ECL allowance on other financial assets during the year ended
December 31, 2019 is as follows:
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Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

ECL allowance as at January 1, 2019

-

-

Net change in ECL value
Transfers to Stage 1
Transfers to Stage 2
Transfers to Stage 3

-

-

(54)
-

(54)
-

As at December 31, 2019

-

-

(54)

(54)

-

-

As at December 31, 2018, all balances included in other financial assets are classified as Stage 1
and no loss allowance is recognized due to insignificancy of the amount.

DUE TO BANKS

December 31,
2019
Loans from “Pasha Bank” OJSC
Loans from “Yelo Bank” OJSC
Other payables to “Yelo Bank” OJSC
Total due to banks

293
3,666
2,916
6,875

December 31,
2018
2,674
5,794
8,468

As at December 31, 2019, the balance due to “Pasha Bank” OJSC was AZN 293 thousand
(2018: AZN 2,674 thousand). This loan consisted of AZN 291 thousand obtained in April 2018
with an annual interest rate of 13% which matures in April 2020, and the balance of accrued
interest was AZN 2 thousand.
The principal balance due to “Yelo Bank” OJSC was AZN 3,659 thousand (2018: AZN 5,725
thousand) and the balance of accrued interest was AZN 7 thousand (2018: AZN 69 thousand).
These loans consist of AZN 2,300 thousand obtained in December 2019 with an annual interest
rate of 13% which matures in December 2021 and AZN 1,359 thousand (USD 800 thousand)
obtained in September 2018 with an annual interest rate of 6% which matures in September
2021.
Other payables to “Yelo Bank” OJSC include payable for transferred loans to customers.
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 included in accrued interest payable on due to banks
amounted to AZN 8 thousand and AZN 82 thousand, respectively.
The Company is not subject to any covenants related to these borrowings.
Movements in due to banks balances for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as
follows:
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Balance at the beginning of the year
Proceeds
Repayment
Total changes from financing cash flows
Interest expense
Interest paid
Balance at the end of the year

December 31,
2019
8,468
2,300
(3,820)
6,948
371
(444)
6,875

December 31,
2018
2,337
15,626
(9,573)
8,390
467
(389)
8,468

TERM BORROWINGS
December 31,
2019
Funds borrowed from JSC “TBC Bank”
Total term borrowings

December 31,
2018
-

3,493
3,493

During the year ended December 31, 2019 the Company repaid all outstanding borrowing from
JSC “TBC Bank”.
Movements in term borrowings balances for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are
as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Repayment
Total changes from financing cash flows
Interest expense
Interest paid
Effect of foreign exchange
Balance at the end of the year

December 31,
2019
3,493
(3,400)
93
51
(144)
-

December 31,
2018
9,854
(6,444)
3,410
821
(737)
(1)
3,493

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 included in accrued interest payable on term borrowings
amounted to AZN nil and AZN 93 thousand, respectively.

DEBT SECURITIES
As at December 31, 2019, the Company has no debt securities in issue (2018: AZN 3,434
thousand in US dollars denominated Eurobonds). Three year bonds matured during 2019,
having a coupon rate of 8% with par value of USD 100,000 per each of 20 bonds.
Movements in debt securities balances for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are
as follows:
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December 31,
2019
3,434
(3,400)
34
95
(129)
-

Balance at the beginning of the year
Repayment
Total changes from financing cash flows
Interest expense
Interest paid
Effect of foreign exchange
Balance at the end of the year

December 31,
2018
8,563
(5,102)
3,461
520
(546)
(1)
3,434

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 included in accrued interest payable on debt securities
amounted to AZN nil and AZN 34 thousand, respectively.

LEASE LIABILITY
December 31,
2019

January 1,
2019

December 31,
2018

Lease liabilities (current)
Lease liabilities (non-current)

267
1,086

43
115

-

Total lease liabilities

1,353

158

-

Future minimum lease payments as at December 31, 2019 were as follows:
Minimum lease payments due
Within one year
Lease payments
Finance charges
Net present value as at
December 31, 2019

One to five years

Total

427
(160)

1,344
(258)

1,771
(418)

267

1,086

1,353

Future minimum lease payments as at January 1, 2019 were as follows:
Minimum lease payments due
Within one year
Lease payments
Finance charges
Net present value as at
January 1, 2019

One to five years

Total

61
(18)

133
(18)

194
(36)

43

115

158

A reconciliation of the opening and closing amounts of lease liabilities with relevant cash and
non-cash changes from financing activities is stated below:
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December 31,
2019
158

Balance at the beginning of the year
Cash flows
Repayment of principal portion of lease liability
Repayment of Interest portion of lease liability
Non-cash changes
Interest expense
New lease liabilities
Balance at the end of the year

(148)
(107)
107
1,343
1,353

OTHER LIABILITIES
December 31,
2019
Payables to employees
Taxes payable other than income tax
Accruals
Total other liabilities

December 31,
2018

128
128

78
4
127
209

CHARTER CAPITAL
Charter capital represents contributions made by participants of the Company. The participants
of the Company are entitled to vote at annual and general meetings of the Company’s
participants proportionately to their contributions.
The outstanding charter capital as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 comprises AZN 8,453
thousand. As at December 31, 2019 the Company is 100% owned by “TBC Bank” JSC.

RISK MANAGEMENT, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Corporate governance framework
The Company is established as a limited liability company in accordance with Azerbaijani law.
The supreme governing body of the Company is the General Shareholders’ meeting that is
called for annual or extraordinary meetings. The General Shareholders’ meeting makes
strategic decisions on the Company’s operations.
The General Shareholders’ meeting elects the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is
responsible for overall governance of the Company’s activities.
Azerbaijani legislation and the Charter of the Company establishes lists of decisions that are
approved by the Board of Directors and that are approved by Director.
General activities of the Company are managed by the sole executive body of the Company
(the General Director) Spartak Tetrashvili. The General Director of the Company is responsible
for implementation of decisions of the Board of Directors. The General Director of the Company
reports to the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Internal control policies and procedures
The General Director has responsibility for the development, implementation and maintaining
of internal controls in the Company that are commensurate with the scale and nature of
operations.
The purpose of internal controls is to ensure:








proper and comprehensive risk assessment and management
proper business and accounting and financial reporting functions, including proper
authorization, processing and recording of transactions
completeness, accuracy and timeliness of accounting records, managerial information,
regulatory reports, etc.
reliability of IT-systems, data and systems integrity and protection
prevention of fraudulent or illegal activities, including misappropriation of assets
compliance with laws and regulations.

Management is responsible for identifying and assessing risks, designing controls and
monitoring their effectiveness. Management monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal controls and periodically implements additional controls or modifies existing controls as
considered necessary.
The main functions of internal audit service include the following:





audit and efficiency assessment of the system of internal control as a whole, fulfilment of
the decisions of key management structures
audit of efficiency of methodology of assessment of the risks and risk management
procedures, regulated by internal documents in the Company (methods, programmes,
rules and procedures)
audit and testing of fairness, completeness and timeliness of accounting and reporting
function and the reliability (including the trustworthiness, fullness and objectivity) of the
collection and submission of financial information
audit of applicable methods of safekeeping the Company's property




assessment of economic reasonability and efficiency of operations and other deals
audit of internal control processes and procedures




The Internal Audit function is independent from management and reports directly to the
Supervisory Board. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with relevant business
process managers, with summaries submitted to the management of the Company.
The internal control system in the Company comprises:








the General Director and Board of Directors
the Chief Accountant
the security function, including IT-security
the human resource function
the internal audit service
the Controlling department

Other employees, division and functions that are responsible for compliance with the
established standards, policies and procedures, including:

42

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)





heads of branches and heads of business-units
the legal officer – an employee responsible for compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements
other employees/divisions with control responsibilities

Management believes that the Company complies with the CBAR requirements related to risk
management and internal control systems, including requirements related to the internal audit
function, and that risk management and internal control systems are appropriate for the scale,
nature and complexity of operations.
Risk management policies and procedures
The Company has risk management policies which aim to identify, analyse and manage the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously
monitor risk levels and adherence to limits.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management
framework, overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk management policies
and procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures.
The General Director is responsible for monitoring and implementing risk mitigation measures,
and ensuring that the Company operates within established risk parameters. He also has
responsibility for controlling the Company’s compliance with risk limits as established by the
CBAR. With the view of controlling effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
procedures and their consistent application the General Director of the Company periodically
receive reports prepared by the internal audit function, discuss the contents of these reports
and consider proposed corrective actions.
Credit risk – Amounts arising from ECL
Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment
See accounting policy in Note 3.
Significant increase in credit risk
When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes quantitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and including forwardlooking information.
The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred for an exposure by comparing:

•
•

the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
expectations).

The Company uses the following criteria for determining whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk:
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•
•
•

Loan exposure past due more than 30 days;
The contract was restructured under circumstances other than described in credit impaired
financial assets definition
Restrictions on the use of Company’s account balances or late payments on deposits due
to the inability of a bank to fulfill the contractual obligations in respect of cash flows within
1 day and more.

The credit risk for placements in banks or loans to corporate borrowers may also be deemed to
have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative factors linked to the
Company’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its
quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain
heightened risk criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based
on its expert judgement and relevant historical experience.
Overdue days are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due
date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.
If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month
ECL.
Generating the term structure of PD
The probability of default (PD,%) for the loans of the Company is calculated using the Markov
chains method, namely, stochastic loan transition matrices over the intervals of overdue periods
during a given analysed period.
The Company collects performance and default information about its credit risk by type of
product. In order to estimate PD, the Company uses historical data horizon starting from July
2016.
For the calculation of PD, all microloans that are available at the beginning of the analyzed
period (the year preceding the date of calculating the reservation rates) are ranked by allocated
overdue intervals:

•
•
•
•
•

“without overdue days”;
“1-30 overdue days”;
“31-60 overdue days “;
“61-90 overdue days “;
“Default”.

Average migration matrix between the risk groups is derived from historical migration data.
As required by IFRS 9, the Company incorporates forward looking information in the
measurement of ECL. PD parameter is adjusted to account for future developments in
macroeconomic factors.
Definition of default
For details on criteria for credit-impaired assets please refer to Note 3.
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Incorporating of forward-looking information
The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the
credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its
measurement of ECL. The Company uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-looking
information. This assessment is based also on external information.
According to one of IFRS 9 main requirements forward-looking view must be included for the
adjustments of PD lifetime dependence and regression models that explain behaviour of
historical defaults rates with selected macroeconomic variables should be used to adjust PD
curves to make it more point-in-time.
The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses, using
an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variable
and credit risk and credit losses.
Macroeconomic indicators were selected based on scientific studies of the probability of defaults
in developing and developed countries. The most significant macroeconomic indicators are real
oil prices and average monthly salary. These indicators should show the greatest impact on the
creditworthiness of the Company’s borrowers, since borrowers of the Company represent a
class of the population with incomes on low level or below middle level.
External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by
governmental bodies and monetary authorities, such as the Central Bank of Azerbaijan
Republic. The Company analysed 3 years historical macroeconomic data.
The key drivers depend on portfolio segment. The economic scenarios used as at December 31,
2019 included the following key indicators for the Republic of Azerbaijan for the years ending
December 31, 2019 through 2022.
Key driver
Average salary in AZN
Real GDP Growth
Nominal GDP
(in thousands AZN)

2019
623.1
2.2%

2020
716.7
2.1%

2021
768.6
2.1%

2022
809.2
2.2%

81,681

81,664

83,986

87,580

Modified financial assets
The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing
market conditions, customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential
credit deterioration of the customer. An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be
derecognized and the renegotiated loan recognized as a new loan at fair value in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in Note 3.
When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in
derecognition, the determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly
reflects comparison of:



its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with
the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original
contractual terms.

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognized and allocated to Stage 1
(assuming it is not credit-impaired at that time).

45

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as
‘forbearance activities’) to maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default.
Under the Company’s forbearance policy, loan forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the
debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk of default, there is evidence that
the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the debtor
is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.
The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest
payments and amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are
subject to the forbearance policy.
For financial assets modified as part of the Company’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD
reflects whether the modification has improved or restored the Company’s ability to collect
interest and principal and the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance action. As
part of this process, the Company evaluates the borrower’s payment performance against the
modified contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators.
Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an
expectation of forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired (see
Note 3). A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good payment behaviour over a period
of time before the exposure is no longer considered to be credit-impaired/ in default or the PD
is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
Measurement of ECL
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:




probability of default (PD);
loss given default (LGD);
exposure at default (EAD).

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD.
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.
The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading “Generating the term
structure of PD”.
The Company estimates LGD parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims
against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, collateral and
recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the financial asset. For loans secured by retail
property, LTV ratios are a key parameter in determining LGD. LGD estimates are recalibrated
to reflect possible changes in property prices. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow
basis using the effective interest rate as the discounting factor.
EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD
from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount
allowed under the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its
gross carrying amount at the time of default.
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As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial
assets, the Company measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum
contractual period (including any borrower’s extension options) over which it is exposed to credit
risk, even if, for credit risk management purposes, the Company considers a longer period.
For portfolios in respect of which the Company has limited historical data, external benchmark
information is used to supplement the internally available data. The portfolios for which external
benchmark information represents a significant input into measurement of ECL are as follows:
Exposure as at
December 31,
2019
457

Cash and cash equivalents

External
Benchmarks used
PD
Moody’s default study

LGD

100%

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risks. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity
financial instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market prices.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to the effects
of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash
flows.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes, but may also reduce or create losses
in the event that unexpected movements occur.
Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps. A summary of the
interest gap position for major financial instruments is as follows:
Less
than
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

More
than
5 years

NonCarrying
interest amount
bearing

December 31, 2019
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

739
42
781

1,035
63
1,098

3,973
266
4,239

4,963
289
5,252

1,787
1,787

460
148
608

460
12,497
660
148
13,765

LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity gap

8
21
29
752

43
43
1,055

3,208
203
3,411
828

3,659
1,086
4,745
507

1,787

121
121
487

6,875
1,353
121
8,349
5,416
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Less
than
1 month

1-3
months

3-12
months

1-5
years

More
than
5 years

NonCarrying
interest amount
bearing

December 31, 2018
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

1,976
30
2,006

774
35
809

3,665
208
3,873

6,684
577
7,261

3,988
3,988

192
4,020
4,212

192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149

LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Term borrowings
Debt securities
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net liquidity gap

712
186
155
1,053
953

1,267
189
227
1,683
(874)

2,932
877
248
4,057
(184)

3,557
2,241
2,804
8,602
(1,341)

3,988

85
85
4,127

8,468
3,493
3,434
85
15,480
6,669

Average effective interest rates
The table below displays average effective interest rates for interest bearing assets and
liabilities as at December 31, 2019 and 2018. These interest rates are an approximation of the
yields to maturity of these assets and liabilities.

2019
Average effective
interest rate, %

2018
Average effective
interest rate, %

AZN

USD

AZN

USD

20.38%
28.11%

17.21%
-

25.05%
28.20%

17.14%
-

13%
13%
-

6%
-

12%
-

6%
9%
8%

Interest bearing assets
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Interest bearing liabilities
Due to banks
Lease liability
Term borrowings
Debt securities

48

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The management of interest rate risk, based on an interest rate gap analysis, is supplemented
by monitoring the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities. An analysis of the sensitivity of net
profit or loss and equity (net of taxes) to changes in interest rates (repricing risk), based on a
simplified scenario of a 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves and
positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as at December 31, 2019 and 2018,
is as follows:
2019
49
(49)

100 bp parallel rise
100 bp parallel fall

2018
25
(25)

Currency risk
The Company has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The following table shows the
currency structure of financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2019:
AZN
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Due to banks
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position

USD

Total

348
9,014
660
148
10,170

112
3,483
3,595

460
12,497
660
148
13,765

5,512
1,353
121
6,986
3,184

1,363
1,363
2,232

6,875
1,353
121
8,349
5,416
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The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and
liabilities as at December 31, 2018:
AZN
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Term borrowings
Debt securities
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position

USD

Total

115
12,009
850
184
13,158

77
5,078
3,836
8,991

192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149

5,527
85
5,612
7,546

3,493
3,434
2,941
9,868

3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480
6,669

(877)

The Company is not required to report for the regulatory currency position compliance purposes
based on the above table, rather currency position based on prudential figures is reported to the
regulator.
A weakening of the AZN, as indicated below, against the following currencies at December 31,
2019 and 2018, would decrease equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This
analysis is on a gross-of-tax basis, and is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances
that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
December 31, 2019
20% appreciation of USD against AZN

446

December 31, 2018
(175)

A strengthening of the AZN against the above currencies at December 31, 2019 and 2018 would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remained constant.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company has policies and procedures
in place to manage credit exposures (both for recognized financial assets and unrecognized
contractual commitments), including guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the
establishment of a Credit Committee to actively monitor credit risk. The credit policy is reviewed
and approved by the Supervisory Board.
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The credit policy establishes:







procedures for reviewing and approving loan credit applications
methodology for the credit assessment of borrowers
methodology for the credit assessment of counterparties, issuers and insurance companies
credit documentation requirements
procedures for the ongoing monitoring of loans and other credit exposures

The Company continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures and
regularly reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the
customer’s most recent financial statements and other information submitted by the borrower,
or otherwise obtained by the Company.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial
assets in the statement of financial position and unrecognized contractual commitment
amounts. The impact of the possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit
exposure is not significant.
The maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets at the reporting date is as follows:

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand)
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total maximum exposure

December 31,
2019

December 31,
2018

457
12,497
660
148
13,762

191
17,087
850
190
18,318

For the analysis of credit risk in respect of loans to customers refer to Note 14.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The
matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and
liabilities is fundamental to liquidity management. It is unusual for financial institutions ever to
be completely matched, since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk
of losses.
The Company maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be
available at all times to honour all cash flow obligations as they become due. The liquidity policy
is reviewed and approved by the Supervisory Board.
The Company seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base.
The liquidity management policy requires:
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projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
maintaining a diverse range of funding sources
managing the concentration and profile of debts
maintaining debt financing plans
maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any interruption to cash flow
maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans
monitoring liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements

The Finance Department receives information from business units regarding the liquidity profile
of their financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from
projected future business. The Finance Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of
short-term liquid assets to be maintained, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within
the Company as a whole.
The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing under a variety of
scenarios covering both normal and more severe market conditions is performed by the Finance
Department. Under the normal market conditions, liquidity reports covering the liquidity position
are presented to senior management on a weekly basis. Decisions on liquidity management are
made by and implemented by the Finance Department.
The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows on financial assets, liabilities and creditrelated commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The total gross
outflow disclosed in the tables is the contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the financial
liabilities.
The undiscounted maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2019
is as follows:
Demand
and less From
From
than
1 to 3
3 to 12
1 month months months
Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total non-derivative assets
Lease liability
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities

From
1 to 5
years

Total
More
gross
than
amount
5 years outflow

Carrying
amount

460
845
53
148
1,506

1,239
84
1,323

4,851
358
5,209

6,549
407
6,956

1,912
1,912

460
15,396
902
148
16,906

460
12,497
660
148
13,765

36
109
121

72
199
-

319
3,215
-

1,344
2,465
-

1,359
-

1,771
7,347
121

1,353
6,875
121

266

271

3,534

3,809

1,359

9,239

8,349
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The undiscounted maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2018
is as follows:
Demand From
From
and less 1 to 3
3 to 12
than
months months
1 month
Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total non-derivative assets
Term borrowings
Debt securities
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total non-derivative financial
liabilities

From
1 to 5
years

More
Total
than
gross
5 years amount
outflow

Carrying
amount

192
2,096
50
190
2,528

1,192
65
1,257

5,240
396
3,830
9,466

8,776
748
9,524

4,174
4,174

192
21,478
1,259
4,020
26,949

192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149

212
177
782
85

241
271
1,406
-

1,113
282
3,278
-

2,482
2,804
3,557
-

-

4,048
3,534
9,023
85

3,493
3,434
8,468
85

1,256

1,918

4,673

8,843

-

16,690

15,480

The table below shows an analysis, by expected maturities, of amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019:
Demand From 1
and
to 3
less than months
1 month
Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to
customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total assets
Non-derivative liabilities
Due to banks
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

From 3
to12
months

From 1
to 5 years

More than
5 years

Overdue
(expired)

Total

460

-

-

-

-

-

460

739
42
148
1,389

1,035
63
1,098

3,973
266
4,239

4,963
289
5,252

206
206

1,581
1,581

12,497
660
148
13,765

Net position

8
21
121
150
1,239

43
43
1,055

3,208
203
3,411
828

3,659
1,086
4,745
507

206

1,581

6,875
1,353
121
8,349
5,416

Cumulative net position

1,239

2,294

3,122

3,629

3,835

5,416

53

“TBC KREDIT NON-BANK CREDIT ORGANIZATION” LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 (Continued)
(in thousands of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise indicated)
The table below shows an analysis, by expected maturities, of amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018:
Demand
and
less than
1 month
Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash
equivalents
Loans and advances to
customers
Financial lease
Other financial assets
Total assets
Non-derivative
liabilities
Term borrowings

From 3
to12
months

From 1
to 5 years

More
than 5 years

Overdue
(expired)

Total

192

-

-

-

-

-

192

963
30
190
1,375

774
35
809

3,665
208
3,830
7,703

5,616
577
6,193

3,988
3,988

2,081
2,081

17087
850
4,020
22,149

186
155
712
85

189
227
1,267
-

877
248
2,932
-

2,241
2,804
3,557
-

-

-

`
3,434
8,468
85

1,138
237

1,683

8,602

(874)

4,057
3,646

3,988

2,081

15,480
6,669

(637)

3,009

4,588

6,669

Debt securities
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total financial
liabilities
Net position

From 1
to 3
months

Cumulative net
position

237

(2,409)
600

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The CBAR sets and monitors capital requirements for the Company. The Company defines as
capital those items defined by statutory regulation as capital for credit organizations. Under the
current capital requirements set by the CBAR, non-bank credit organizations have to hold a
minimum level of charter capital of AZN 300 thousand (2018: AZN 300 thousand).
There is no requirement set by the CBAR to non-bank credit organization regarding the
maintenance of a ratio of total regulatory capital to risk weighted assets (statutory capital ratio).
The Company has no formal policy for capital management but management seeks to maintain
a sufficient capital base for meeting the Company’s operational and strategic needs, and to
maintain confidence of market participants. This is achieved with efficient cash management,
constant monitoring of Company’s revenues and profit, and long-term investment plans mainly
financed by the Company’s operating cash flows. With these measures the Company aims for
steady profits growth.
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CONTINGENCIES
Insurance
The insurance industry in the Republic of Azerbaijan is in a developing state and many forms of
insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The
Company insures its property and equipment which it considers crucial for business continuity.
The Company does not have full coverage for business interruption, or third-party liability in
respect of property or environmental damage arising from accidents on its property or related
to operations. Until the Company obtains adequate insurance coverage, there is a risk that the
loss or destruction of certain assets could have a material adverse effect on operations and
financial position.
Litigation
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints.
Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future
operations.
Taxation contingencies
The taxation system in the Republic of Azerbaijan is relatively new and is characterised by
frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often
unclear, contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes
are subject to review and investigation by various levels of authorities, which have the authority
to impose severe fines and interest charges.
A tax year generally remains open for review by the tax authorities for three subsequent
calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open longer.
These circumstances may create tax risks in Azerbaijan that are more significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its
interpretations of applicable tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions.
However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these
financial statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could
be significant.
In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Company takes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes, penalties and late-payment
interest may be due. The Company believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for
all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law
and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a
series of judgments about future events. New information may become available that causes
the Company to change its judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such
changes to tax liabilities will impact the tax expense in the period that such a determination is
made.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Remuneration of key management personnel
Total remuneration included in personnel expenses for the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 is as follows:
December 31,
2019
366
366

Short-term employee benefits

December 31,
2018
452
452

The Company does not provide post-employment, termination and other long-term benefits to
management.
Transactions with other related parties
The outstanding balances and average effective interest rates as at December 31, 2019 for
transactions with key management personnel, parent company and entities under common
control of the same parent are as follows:
Statement of financial
position

Cash and cash
equivalents
Gross amount of loans
and advances to
customers
Other liabilities

Key
Management
Personnel

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

Entities
under
common
control

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

Parent
company

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

-

-

-

-

26

-

29

19%
(AZN)

-

-

-

-

29

-

-

-

-

-

The outstanding balances and average effective interest rates as at December 31, 2018 for
transactions with key management personnel, parent company and entities under common
control of the same parent are as follows:

Statement of financial
position

Cash and cash
equivalents
Gross amount of loans
and advances to
customers
Term borrowings
Other liabilities

Key
Management
Personnel

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

Entities
under
common
control

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

Parent
company

Average
effective
interest
rate, %

-

-

-

-

22

-

55

23%
(AZN)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,493

6.8%+Libor
(USD)

2

-

-

-

10
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Amounts included in profit or loss in relation to transactions with key management personnel,
parent company and entities under common control of the same parent for the year ended
December 31, 2019 are as follows:
Key Management
Personnel
Statement of profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Fee and commission expense

Entities
under
common
control

2
-

Parent
company

-

51
-

Amounts included in profit or loss in relation to transactions with key management personnel,
parent company and entities under common control of the same parent for the year ended
December 31, 2018 are as follows:
Key Management
Personnel
Statement of profit or loss
Interest income
Interest expense
Fee and commission expense

10
-

Entities
under
common
control
119
520
22

Parent
company

341
-

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES: FAIR VALUES AND ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATIONS
Accounting classifications and fair values
The table below sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities as at December 31, 2019:
Amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Due to banks
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

460
12,497
660
148
13,765
6,875
1,353
121
8,349

Total carrying
amount
460
12,497
660
148
13,765
6,875
1,353
121
8,349

Fair value
460
12,497
660
148
13,765
6,875
1,353
121
8,349
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The table below sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities as at December 31, 2018:
Amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Term borrowings
Debt securities
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

Total carrying
amount
192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

Fair value
192
17,087
850
4,020
22,149
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell
an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. However, given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment,
the fair value should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate sale of the assets
or transfer of liabilities.
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based
on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the
Company determines fair values using other valuation techniques.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the
price that would be received to sell the asset, or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value hierarchy
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:


Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical
instrument.



Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are observable
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less
than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.



Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable
inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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The table below analyses financial instruments not measured at fair value at December 31,
2019, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is
categorized. The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial
position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets

Level 2
457
9,515
660
148
10,780

Due to banks
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

2,982
2,982

Total fair
values
457
12,497
660
148
13,762

Total carrying
amount
457
12,497
660
148
13,762

-

6,875
1,353
121
8,349

6,875
1,353
121
8,349

Level 3

6,875
1,353
121
8,349

The table below analyses financial instruments not measured at fair value at December 31,
2018, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is
categorized. The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial
position:

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and advances to customers
Finance lease
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Term borrowings
Debt securities
Due to banks
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

Level 2
191
13,309
850
4,020
18,370
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

Level 3
3,778
3,778
-

Total fair
values
191
17,087
850
4,020
22,148
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

Total carrying
amount
191
17,087
850
4,020
22,148
3,493
3,434
8,468
85
15,480

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On January 31, 2020 the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan decided to reduce the
refinancing rate from 7.50% to 7.25%, the ceiling of the interest rate corridor from 9.25% to
9.00% and the floor from 5.75% to 5.50%.
In late 2019 the outbreak of coronavirus occurred in Wuhan, China. The situation as at
December 31, 2019 was limited in number of reported cases and geography and therefore this
event was considered as non-adjusted event for the financial reporting purposes under IFRS.
However, after January 2020 the situation changed drastically, and in March 2020 the World
Health Organization (WHO) announced that the coronavirus outbreak can be characterized as
a pandemic.
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Many governments, including the government of the Republic of Azerbaijan have introduced
various measures to combat the outbreak, including travel restrictions, quarantines, closure of
business and other venues and lockdown of certain areas. These measures have affected the
global supply chain as well as demand for goods and services and resulted in significant
disruption to business operations and a significant increase in economic uncertainty, with more
volatile asset prices and currency exchange rates, and a marked decline in long-term interest
rates in developed economies. These government responses and their corresponding effects
are still evolving.
In addition to slowdown in world economy, oil prices have declined dramatically after OPEC and
Russia were unable to agree on production cuts at their March 2020 meeting. These events and
conditions create a level of uncertainty and risk that companies may not have encountered
before, and may result in significant financial reporting implications.
Currently, the management is working on action plans under different scenarios of future
developments. The Company’s management estimates that if the current situation does not
improve in the nearest future, the Company might go to certain loan restructuring with their
customers.
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